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          1  COMMITTEE ON RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I am Leroy

          3  Comrie, I chair the Committee on Rules, Privileges,

          4  and Elections.  Today is September 17th.

          5                 We have with us Council Members,

          6  Deputy Majority Leader, Bill Perkins from Manhattan,

          7  Council Member Charles Barron from Brooklyn, Council

          8  Member David Weprin from Queens, to my right,

          9  Council Member Lew Fidler, Council Member Madeline

         10  Provenzano from the Bronx, and I thought I saw

         11  Dennis Gallagher, but I guess he left.  Okay, I knew

         12  somebody was missing.

         13                 But today we have before us five

         14  Mayoral candidates for our Advice and Consent

         15  Review, and one City Council candidate for

         16  re-designation.  They are:

         17                 Rudy Washington, Queens resident,

         18  Mayoral appointment to the Civil Service Commission

         19  replacing Bernard Jackson for a term that expires on

         20  March 21st, 2009.

         21                 Belle Horwitz, Manhattan resident,

         22  Mayoral appointee to the -- with "business"

         23  experience, to the Environmental Control Board, for

         24  a term that expires on November 24th, 2005.

         25                 Robert Carver, Brooklyn resident,
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          2  Mayoral appointee with "real estate" experience, to

          3  the Environmental Control Board replacing Jonathan

          4  Ballan for a term the expires on November 24th,

          5  2005.

          6                 Alice Olick, Manhattan resident,

          7  Mayoral appointee to the Tax Commission to complete

          8  a six-year term that expires on January 6th, 2008.

          9                 Next we have Aladar Gyimesi, Staten

         10  Island resident, Mayoral appointee to the Tax

         11  Commission to complete a six-year term that expires

         12  on January 6th, 2008.

         13                 And we are expecting Dennis deLeon,

         14  Manhattan resident, Council re-designate to the

         15  Civilian Complaint Review Board for a remainder of a

         16  three-year term that expires on July 5th, 2006.

         17                 At this time, we will start with Mr.

         18  Rudy Washington.  Just to remind the members and

         19  public regarding the Civil Service Commission; the

         20  Civil Service Commission consists of five members,

         21  with not more than three being from the same

         22  political party.  Mr. Washington registered in the

         23  Republican Party, will succeed Bernard Jackson who

         24  is a registered Democrat. The Mayor, from a list

         25  provided by the Screening Committee, makes the
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          2  appointment.  Members have a six-year term and are

          3  reimbursed on a per-diem basis of $305.09 for

          4  attendance at scheduled meetings and hearings.

          5                 The Commission's duties include

          6  hearing and determining appeals from any aggrieved

          7  person from a decision by the Commissioner of the

          8  Department of Citywide Services (DCAS), who is

          9  responsible for Citywide personnel matters.  The

         10  Commission may affirm, modify, or reverse such a

         11  decision.  The Commission has all the powers and

         12  duties set forth in the State Civil Service Law.

         13                 At this time, Mr. Washington, can you

         14  raise your right hand and be sworn in, please?

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Do you

         16  solemnly swear or affirm the testimony you are about

         17  give the Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

         18                 MR. WASHINGTON:  I do.

         19                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Please

         20  state your name for the record.  I think you need to

         21  press the button.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  If the button is

         23  off, then the mic is on.

         24                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Rudy Washington.

         25                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Good morning,

          3  Mr. Washington. Do you have any opening statements

          4  that you would like to give to us this morning?

          5                 MR. WASHINGTON:  I would just like to

          6  say good morning, and thank you for giving me this

          7  opportunity to come in front of you, and good

          8  morning to all your fellow, other Council members.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, I want to

         10  have an opening, start the questioning.  The Civil

         11  Service Commission, as you know, is, does deal with

         12  the personnel management and compensation practices

         13  for various City, all of the City employees, can you

         14  tell us what experience have you had in handling

         15  these areas in both your public, and private life to

         16  elucidate it for the Committee please?

         17                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Well, to go to my

         18  private life, I come out of heavy construction.  I

         19  owned my own business and had a few union contracts

         20  with various labor unions from the private sector,

         21  so I have from the private sector, experience in

         22  negotiating and working with my own contracts, and

         23  being responsible for my own labor force, and I am

         24  happy to say that I navigated and managed that quite

         25  well.
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          2                 On the public side, as some members,

          3  because I have worked with in the past know that I

          4  was a Commissioner and Deputy Mayor and was very

          5  actively involved in just about every aspect of

          6  government during my many years of service.  God

          7  bless you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Councilman

          9  Barron and Councilman Fidler have questions.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair, and good morning Mr. Washington.

         12  Usually, these stamp of approval hearings--

         13                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Why should we be any

         14  different?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  You are going

         16  to have a rough time this morning.

         17                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Why?  What for?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Because I

         19  really believe that some of your work with the

         20  Giuliani Administration, particularly around the

         21  fact that under the Giuliani Administration,

         22  minority owned and women owned businesses were

         23  almost gutted.  A lot damage was done to our

         24  community and you were in the leadership of that.

         25                 MR. WASHINGTON:  I beg to differ.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Let me

          3  finish, Mr. Washington, and then your can respond.

          4  You were in the leadership of that, and you pranced

          5  around the City with Giuliani, and a lot of his

          6  policies, he put you out there with him, that hurt

          7  our community, and I want to know more about your

          8  role when the Giuliani Administration was cutting

          9  minority owned businesses and contracts.  A lot of

         10  businesses declined by minorities and women under

         11  the Giuliani Administration, and your were right

         12  there in the leadership of it.

         13                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Well, I beg to

         14  disagree with you. I do not know how we get at the

         15  heart of this question here today when I can say

         16  anything I want to say, and you are not able to

         17  refute it.  So, I think that is a waste of your time

         18  and my time.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I think that

         20  is very arrogant but just answer the question.

         21                 MR. WASHINGTON:  I will say this,

         22  that when I was Commissioner of the Department of

         23  Business Services, I started a program called Bid

         24  Match, in which I did bring the Council over and

         25  explained the program;  how it worked, and basically
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          2  it was a program that brought minority firms in and

          3  allowed them to do fast turn- around purchases.  I

          4  sat on the Policy Procurement Board, so I raised the

          5  limit from 10,000 to, I think, it was 50,000, it may

          6  now very well be 100,000.  So what happened was, as

          7  a result of just that one program alone, we were

          8  able to bring in a number of minority contractors

          9  and increase the number that was already in

         10  existence, and brought them in on fast turn- around

         11  contracts that were turned around within five days.

         12  As you all know, the procurement process can stretch

         13  out as long as 60 or 90 days.  I streamlined that

         14  process, and made it possible for minority firms to

         15  buy from Akles (phonetic) across the City, in small

         16  purchases and to get their monies, the dollar

         17  amounts much more quicker.

         18                 I also started a mentoring program.

         19  Coming out of the construction business, I knew that

         20  the major problem facing minority firm was bonding,

         21  insurance, and financing.  I started a program at

         22  the Department of Business Services that still

         23  exists, where we began to bring and run classes at

         24  night, bring minority firms in, prepared them to get

         25  bonds from bonding companies.  We made the marriages
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          2  between bonding companies and contractors.  We also

          3  had a mentoring program where we joined small

          4  minority firm with major large firms in a mentoring

          5  relationship.  I mean, I can go on and on.  The

          6  reality was that, and this is not only in New York

          7  City, this is across the board, across the country.

          8  You can put these programs out here, but if you

          9  offer no support, and one of the reasons why if you

         10  look at the minority programs today, you do not have

         11  any success that you can point to, and you can go

         12  back, pre- date the Giuliani era 20 years, and go

         13  back earlier, you will not find a major, successful

         14  minority contractors in this City because all we

         15  have done was put window dressing up about a

         16  minority program that says millions of dollars, and

         17  the reality was, if you had a program today,

         18  Councilman, if you were to pass legislation that

         19  said, we are going to have it set aside for ten

         20  million dollars, twenty- five million dollars worth

         21  of work, that in fact, and put it out there to bid

         22  under the requirements that exist today, I guarantee

         23  you, and you can pick the time out of the Giuliani

         24  era, go before the Giuliani era, go to the Koch, go

         25  to Dinkins, any era you want, you will have, I would
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          2  venture to guess, almost say to you with some

          3  certainty, you would not have five companies within

          4  the minority community that would be able to step up

          5  and under the existing requirements of the

          6  procurement rules of the City of New York, that

          7  could meet those requirements, not five, not five.

          8                 I mean, so, it is easy to label the

          9  Giuliani Administration and try to lay all of this

         10  at the doorstep of the Giuliani Administration, but

         11  the reality is, until you put programs in place that

         12  address the rudimentary problems, i.e., banking,

         13  insurance, bonding, bidding, infrastructure within

         14  the minority firm, until you begin to address those

         15  issues you will not have any significant growth

         16  within the minority community, the business

         17  community, that would be something that we all could

         18  be proud of. So, what I did as Commissioner, when I

         19  was Commissioner, was began to try to address the

         20  rudimentary issues, and as a result, I did build

         21  some companies that were in the half- million,

         22  million dollar range, and I was able to look at some

         23  people and say to myself, wow, they are hiring

         24  people right out of jail.  They are hiring people

         25  coming off of Social Services, and created
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          2  employment that did not exist, as you know and as

          3  everybody else knows, under the Giuliani

          4  Administration, we experienced growth to the tune of

          5  over 300,00, close to 400,000 new jobs.  That is

          6  where these jobs were at, they were not created at

          7  the IBM's and Xerox's of the world. They were

          8  created at the small business level of the world,

          9  and that is what I was addressing, so, I hope I

         10  answered your question to the best of my ability.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  No, you did,

         12  but what is irrefutable is under the Dinkins

         13  Administration, minority- owned business fared

         14  better than under the Giuliani, it is irrefutable,

         15  you can say..

         16                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Not true, not true.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  It is true,

         18  let me finish, I listened to you.  It is just not

         19  true, all of this job creation, unemployment was

         20  very high in our communities under the Giuliani

         21  Administration, and much of the minority contracts,

         22  even if you increase the percentage of, say the nine

         23  billion dollars worth of contracting that the City

         24  does in New York, even if you say 30 percent of it

         25  is minority- owned, usually, not 30 percent of the
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          2  money, so the contract, the amount of the contracts

          3  was even a serious problem but we will move on, but

          4  under the Giuliani Administration, minority-owned

          5  businesses were hurt, and we fared better under

          6  Dinkins.  I want to move to the next question.

          7                 MR. WASHINGTON:  I respectfully

          8  disagree.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Can we move on?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  We will move

         11  on, but we definitely disagree, we have a different

         12  interpretation of reality.

         13                 MR. WASHINGTON:  I said that was

         14  going to happen.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  And anything,

         16  statistics, anybody can come up with statistics to

         17  back up what they believe.

         18                 MR. WASHINGTON:  But I respect your

         19  opinion, fine, let's move on.  I said that

         20  Councilman, that is why I said it would have bee

         21  useless to engage in this debate.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  We are moving

         23  on, we know, we are moving on, we are moving on.

         24  Second thing, the vendors in Harlem and on Fulton

         25  Street.  We, the community was working to negotiate
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          2  with some of the store owners that had vendors in

          3  front of them, so that they would not, (someone

          4  sneezed), bless you.

          5                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Oh, good morning

          6  Councilwomen. Good seeing you again.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Hello, it is

          8  allergy season.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  We have been

         10  joined by Council Member Christine Quinn, who

         11  announced herself, and Council Member Melinda Katz.

         12                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Good morning

         13  Melinda.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  While we, while

         15  I interrupted, excuse me Council member, I just want

         16  to try to emphasize that we are assessing the

         17  qualifications for this candidate to be part of the

         18  Civil Service Commission and we should try to focus

         19  those comments and questions around his ability to

         20  serve on that Commission, and I hope that, I

         21  understand what, and I am trying to allow some

         22  latitude, but we want to try to focus on what

         23  qualifications allows him to serve as a member of

         24  the Civil service Commission.

         25                 And before I forget, I forgot that I
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          2  have had absolutely no contact with the candidate or

          3  any other member regarding this issue.  You and I

          4  had a conversation, and I left it just between you

          5  and I, and I never even expressed it to anyone else

          6  until today at Steering, when we talked about it for

          7  the first time.  So I just want to be clear on that,

          8  but I have had no conversations with any of the

          9  candidates.  I have never had, since I have been the

         10  Chair, allowed any conversations with any of the

         11  proposed candidates to any Committee position, and I

         12  cannot even, I would never break that hard and fast

         13  rule.   I would never disrespect any members opinion

         14  to express their opinion, or be allowed to do

         15  whatever they can to express how they feel about a

         16  certain topic, but we need to make sure that we

         17  focus on that candidates qualifications, and while

         18  the past comes into qualifications, we need to make

         19  sure we focus only on those issues that really shine

         20  on his that persons ability to serve in the position

         21  that they are being promoted for.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Mr. Chair, I

         23  think I am on target with what you are saying

         24  because not only do qualifications count as position

         25  on policies, his character, all of that is brought
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          2  to this position.  So, it is not just whether he has

          3  a degree, or whether he knows about procurement and

          4  things of that nature, it is also his position on

          5  policies, because policies will shape and mold this

          6  position and where the City goes in the future. So I

          7  think everything I am asking is in line with what

          8  you just said.

          9                 The vendors' situation was a policy

         10  issue under the Giuliani Administration.  People in

         11  the community were working with the vendors and

         12  store owners that had different concerns, but you

         13  supported Giuliani just sweeping the vendors off of

         14  125th Street, and putting them on 116th Street,

         15  sweeping other vendors off Fulton Street, and

         16  putting them in a place where it really hurt their

         17  businesses, when we were trying to negotiate with

         18  store owners, so that vendors who were in front of

         19  their store would keep it neatly, and would not sell

         20  the same products that that store is selling, but

         21  you came in with Giuliani, and his bull dog tactics,

         22  and just moved it out because you could.  You were

         23  in a power and privileged position.  Yes, I will

         24  stop there.

         25                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Okay, first of all,
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          2  let me say this.  In 1994, one of the first

          3  community board meetings I attended was in Harlem, I

          4  believe it was Community Board 10, and at that

          5  meeting the first thing I was hit with was, what are

          6  you going to do about the vendors, from the

          7  Community Board, the Council person, who was at that

          8  time now today the Borough President, asked the same

          9  question.  Every business organization uptown asked

         10  the same question, what are you going to do about

         11  the vendors.  Store merchants up and down 125th

         12  Street, the question was, what are you going to do

         13  about the vendors?  I did not just in there because

         14  they said these vendors gotta go, I took six months,

         15  I met with everybody in the community, including the

         16  Congressman.  I met with the Borough President at

         17  the time, who was Ruth Messinger, and talked to her

         18  about it, I talked to the Assemblyperson about it.

         19  Every elected official, I talked to just about every

         20  clergy person that was impacted uptown about it, and

         21  it was a general consensus I even got letters, and I

         22  told everybody, I want it in writing. They put it in

         23  writing, Councilman, asking that we remove the

         24  vendors.

         25                 After I built general consensus with
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          2  every elected official, every business group, and

          3  everybody that represented a body up there, I did

          4  embark upon a program on how to do it.  It took six

          5  months.  I developed a program, I did it through the

          6  Community Board, and through the BID, and through

          7  the Council person, I showed him what I was doing,

          8  and I said this is what I want to do; move the

          9  vendors from off of 125th Street, not put them out

         10  of business, but give them an opportunity to build

         11  their own businesses.  From that point, and go back

         12  to your first question about small business, let me

         13  finish.  We took the vendors, and not only did we

         14  just move them, we set up an educational program.

         15  We set up a small banking program, and then we took

         16  some of those vendors that moved through the vendor

         17  program and put them in storefronts that were

         18  abandoned and closed uptown.  And so what you have

         19  right there before they built the new store, right

         20  across from Sylvia's, the new high rise, Councilman,

         21  we have, one of the vendors we put over there, in

         22  that row of nine stores.  I mean, so we took street

         23  vendors that went through the vendor market, came

         24  out of the vendor market, and put them in their own

         25  business.  I believe that is the American Dream, we
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          2  just did not willy-nilly go up there one day and say

          3  we are going to move against people, and Annette

          4  Robinson who was a council person from Brooklyn, sat

          5  with me and wanted to start a BID because I started,

          6  I don't know, about 10 or 12 new BIDs under my

          7  administration, and we talked about it and I also

          8  worked with her, identified the locations, and every

          9  time I moved against street vendors, I did it with

         10  the elected official from this body, that

         11  represented that district, and asked for their

         12  consensus, and their approval in what I was doing,

         13  everybody signed off.

         14                 If I have to I can go to the

         15  archives, get the letters, and show that this was

         16  done with the consensus of this body.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  The only

         18  people that did not sign off were the vendors.  The

         19  vendors did not appreciate what you have done, and

         20  if you talk to the vendors, you hurt a lot of them,

         21  and many of them are out of business now.  Mr.

         22  Chair, I will just say the rest to the Committee,

         23  and rather than keep this long, drawn out exchange.

         24                 I am vehemently opposed of his

         25  appointment and I know this is a stamp of approval,
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          2  you are going to get it anyway, but I am opposed to

          3  it, and I think the Committee should, not only did

          4  all of those things he did under the Giuliani

          5  Administration, which really hurt our community, he

          6  also was involved and this may seem unrelated to

          7  you, but the Million Youth March, when they came

          8  down with the helicopters, he was right out there

          9  that day and it caused problems in our community,

         10  behind Giuliani.  It also gives the balance of power

         11  to Republicans, we will have another Republican on

         12  the Board, and they will have the balance of power,

         13  and he also serves on the MTA Board which recently

         14  voted for the transit fare hike, and he does not

         15  take on white men in power, he capitulates to their

         16  needs and that is why I oppose this appointment.

         17  Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  Just

         19  for a point of information, you will have to be

         20  leaving the MTA Board to assume this position from,

         21  and we expect that you will be sending us a letter

         22  to that effect, as that happens, okay.  Council

         23  Member Lew Fidler.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Actually, Mr.

         25  Chairman, Mr. Washington really answered very much
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          2  to my satisfaction, the question I was going to ask,

          3  which was relative to his record on initiatives for

          4  minority businesses.  I, one person I know who has

          5  had dealings with Mr. Washington, is a gentleman by

          6  the name of Robert Williams, who is the Executive

          7  Director of the Association of Minority Businesses

          8  of New York, who has always told me that Mr.

          9  Washington was their champion, so, I think I have

         10  heard an answer that satisfies me.  I know it won't

         11  shock my colleague, Mr. Barron, to know that we

         12  differ on this appointment.  So, I actually have

         13  nothing further to ask Mr. Washington.

         14                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Yes, Councilman,

         15  Chairman, let me say this about minority businesses,

         16  because it was near and dear to me.  And I think it

         17  is good, it is something that once you contemplate

         18  going forward.

         19                 Any program that is perceived as

         20  building one man up to tear another man down, in

         21  this country, is not going to stand. You are kidding

         22  yourself.  It is going to be tied up in court, you

         23  are going to loose, it is not going forward.  So,

         24  you have to have programs that are sensitive, not

         25  just to the people you are trying to help, but to
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          2  the concerns of the greater community.  And that is

          3  what I tried to accomplish, to have programs that

          4  would stand the legal test and that would survive,

          5  and go forward, and make a meaningful contribution

          6  to the minority community, as opposed to, once again

          7  putting something out there that is going to be

          8  sued, and go no where.  And that is all you have had

          9  in the last 25 years.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I want to remind

         11  the Members that we have a Democratic Caucus at

         12  noon.

         13                 We have been joined by Council Member

         14  Diana Reyna. You did nod when I asked you the

         15  question, but I need you to speak it for the record

         16  that you will provide a letter.

         17                 MR. WASHINGTON:  You have it I said.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Oh, we have it

         19  already, okay, good.  Council Member Perkins.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

         21  very much, Mr. Chairman, and thank you for your

         22  presence, Mr. Washington.

         23                 I want to go back to some of the

         24  concerns that were raised by my colleague Charles

         25  Barron, especially, the fact is that during the
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          2  Dinkins Administration we did have a program that

          3  would be supportive of including minorities and

          4  women, in terms of contracting for the City, and one

          5  of the first acts on behalf of the Giuliani

          6  Administration was not only to denounce that

          7  program, but also to eliminate it.

          8                 In response to that, my office and

          9  many of the offices of Members of the City Council,

         10  and other levels of government, as well, were

         11  flooded with calls and concerns from minority

         12  businesses in protest to the fact that this was

         13  happening.

         14                 In addition to that, as the

         15  Administration, the Giuliani Administration

         16  proceeded, it became clear that the contracting

         17  opportunities for, so called, minority businesses

         18  were going down, not going up, and, in fact, it got

         19  so bad that I know as a member of the Contracts

         20  Committee, we have had as on their request, hearings

         21  in which those minority organizations were in

         22  attendance to share with the Council the impact of

         23  the Giuliani Administration's policies, in terms of

         24  their opportunities for getting contracts with the

         25  City, and so, I am a little concerned that you do
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          2  not seem to appreciate, that from their point of

          3  view, and from the point of view of just the record

          4  that was eventually shown, that there was a decrease

          5  in the number of minorities and women getting

          6  contracts, that you do not seem to acknowledge that

          7  that policy had a negative impact from that point of

          8  view.

          9                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Well, let me say

         10  this, and not to disparage any other Administration.

         11                 I believe, and Councilman, I want to

         12  caution, I am talking on something that I did not

         13  think I had to speak to, so I am talking from 10

         14  years, 12, 14 years ago, on my recollection. But, if

         15  I remember correctly, there was a case in 1988,

         16  called Crowsen (phonetic) versus the State of

         17  Richmond, I mean the City of Richmond in Virginia,

         18  and the decision basically came down and said that

         19  before you can have a MBE Program, you would have to

         20  do a disparity study.  The then, Mayor Dinkins, was

         21  coming into office, I think, shortly after that

         22  decision was rendered.  Two years into his term, he

         23  contracted with, I believe it might have been, I

         24  cannot think of the company, but one of the other

         25  companies was Imbelldiff (phonetic), out of
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          2  Washington, out of Maryland, to do the disparity

          3  study.  They did the disparity study, I believe

          4  around '90- '91, and they rolled out a program in

          5  Mayor Dinkins last year.  Immediately upon embarking

          6  upon our program, it was enjoined, there was a

          7  lawsuit.

          8                 We walked into office with a program

          9  that was sued, and they were challenging the whole

         10  validity of the study, the program did not go

         11  forward, there was roughly a component of the

         12  program that had a joint venture component where you

         13  could qualify as a minority as a joint venture,

         14  there were 13 contracts done under that, and of the

         15  13, just about all of them were WBE's, which is

         16  basically Women Owned Businesses that were not women

         17  of color.

         18                 So, immediately there was a

         19  challenge, there was a question to whether or not

         20  these were real joint ventures, i.e.,  one would put

         21  out some numbers and say well we have accomplished,

         22  but we were facing litigation with a program that we

         23  now had to defend, that we did not even know what

         24  went into putting the program together.

         25                 So, once again, the Councilmen and I,
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          2  when he first embarked down this road, I said it is

          3  a waste of his time and the body because you do not

          4  have the statistics, I do not have the statistics,

          5  and I am being honest with you, I am trying to

          6  recall what happened.  But I do know the program was

          7  enjoined, we were faced with litigation, and people

          8  were challenging the validity of the study, and that

          9  is where it was at when we walked through the door.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I know this

         11  Council had studies that showed that under that

         12  Administration.

         13                 MR. WASHINGTON:  You appropriated

         14  money but never went forward during the --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  You do not

         16  know the question I am asking you.

         17                 MR. WASHINGTON: -- I was just saying

         18   --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  But, let me

         20  finish what I am saying.  The facts are that the

         21  numbers of minority and women businesses that were

         22  getting contracts from the City plummeted under the

         23  Giuliani Administration, despite your well

         24  intentioned efforts, as you pointed out to help them

         25  with certain type of infrastructure issues, the fact
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          2  of the matter is that they ended the program, and

          3  they ended it with contemptuous remarks about the

          4  whole idea of affirmative action and the whole idea

          5  of such programs for minorities and women.  Now, so

          6  that is a fact, now the other fact is this; that in

          7  an effort, this Council appropriated money every

          8  year for the Administration to do a study to

          9  actually find out exactly what was going on with the

         10  Administration, and the opportunities for minority

         11  and businesses, and women businesses, which you

         12  never allowed to happen.  You never spent the money

         13  for the studies, and we never, through your

         14  Administration, were able to get that done.  Do you

         15  recall, you know that is a fact?

         16                 MR. WASHINGTON:  No, what you

         17  appropriated was, I believe, was about $130,000.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  About

         19  $200,000 for the fiscal year.

         20                 MR. WASHINGTON:  It might have been,

         21  it was only one year.  I was, and it happened when I

         22  was Commissioner.  I left after my second year, and

         23  became Deputy Mayor, but there was one

         24  appropriation, however, the study required somewhere

         25  in the neighborhood of $750,000 to a million dollars
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          2  to do.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Well, I do

          4  not know.

          5                 MR. WASHINGTON:  So, the reality

          6  is...

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  There was

          8  never an effort on the Administration's part to

          9  disclose through a study exactly what was happening

         10  in that area, and that was the main concern.       The

         11  money was not the issue because when we did give up

         12  the money, you never used the money, and then when

         13  we wanted in some cooperative way find out what is

         14  actually going on, the Administration never allowed

         15  that to happen.

         16                 Let me just mention one other point

         17  though on this matter, if you don't mind.

         18                 MR. WASHINGTON:  But, because I was

         19  working with Priscilla Wooten, Virginia Fields, and

         20  there were so many people that went forward to

         21  appropriate the $200,000, and push for it, but it

         22  was not enough, and we were working together on

         23  that, and they were going to address that issue

         24  later on.  We never, quite honestly, I moved on, and

         25  it was never addressed.  We reverted back to the

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  Koch program, which was the LBE Program, that we

          3  continuously put in place.  In the absence of the

          4  program that David Dinkins, Mayor Dinkins had put in

          5  place, that was being sued.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  My concern

          7  is this, and I know the Chairman has, sort of,

          8  guided us in terms of trying to make this relevant,

          9  but to me, it is relevant to sensitivities of

         10  people, the political perspectives of people, the

         11  ideological perspectives of people that sit on these

         12  various Commissions because it will suggest to me

         13  whether or not they are receptive, whether

         14  responsive to people of color, to women as well as

         15  others, and from what perspective they are going to

         16  be dealing with the responsibilities they are about

         17  to have.  For instance, I know after 9/11 a major

         18  contract was let to do work at the site, and I know

         19  that again minority contractors from Queens,

         20  Brooklyn, all over the City were upset because they

         21  were never given an opportunity to participate in

         22  those construction and related opportunities down at

         23  the site.  Four major corporations, developers were

         24  given it, the sub- contractors did not include them,

         25  and the Administration at the time seemed to be
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          2  insensitive, and I know we had a hearing on the

          3  Contracts Committee about that, just at the end of

          4  the term.

          5                 So, again, what we have found and I

          6  know that you were, to some extent, responsible for

          7  administering an insensitivity on the part of that

          8  Administration with regard to businesses of color

          9  and women businesses, that, sort of, concerns me in

         10  terms of your appointment to a position where very

         11  often a lot of these civil service issues are issues

         12  related to color.

         13                 MR. WASHINGTON:  Well, to speak to

         14  9/11, Councilman, as you may not know, I was a

         15  person, one, that was here at City Hall coordinating

         16  a lot of things.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Right.

         18                 MR. WASHINGTON:  I brought in the

         19  military.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I do know,

         21  that is why I am raising this to you because it was

         22  brought to me, it was brought to us a question about

         23  construction, right, right.

         24                 MR. WASHINGTON:  On the construction,

         25  by noon that day, I had already engaged because in
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          2  my private life I was here in '93 at the World Trade

          3  Center.  By noon that day, I knew what we were up

          4  against, and I knew we were going to need heavy

          5  digging equipment.  I knew we were going to need a

          6  lot of equipment to remove a lot of debris, and any

          7  attempt to save anybody's life.

          8                 In those kind of circumstances,

          9  Councilman, what one thinks about is saving a life.

         10  Now, you and the Councilman, Councilman Barron may

         11  disagree with this, but, when I am sitting here and

         12  I am not in touch with the Mayor, and it is

         13  basically my call, the only thing I am thinking

         14  about is getting what I need, and I realize time is

         15  of the essence, and what I do, who I call in to do

         16  this, I realize my decisions may very well cost

         17  somebody their life.  The last thing I am thinking

         18  about is who I am calling to get it.  I mean, at

         19  that point, if the Russians had the equipment I need

         20  to get in there and save lives, I would have called

         21  the Russians and said, come on.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  We are not

         23  talking about the immediate aftermath.  We know you

         24  ran out to California and got Bectel and four major

         25  developers for that purpose.  That is clearly not

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  what we are talking about.  Because I had

          3  discussions with the Commissioner at DDC and all the

          4  other Commissioners related to this on behalf of

          5  those folks, and this was after the original four

          6  contracts went out, that divided up the site into

          7  four different parts.  This was significantly after

          8  that part of 9/11 took place.  This was not the

          9  immediate aftermath of 9/11; it was post- 9/11, from

         10  that point of view.  That is what we are talking

         11  about, so, while I can appreciate the urgency of

         12  what you had to do to save lives, we are beyond

         13  saving lives at this point.  This was past the life

         14  saving point of view.

         15                 MR. WASHINGTON:  I cannot speak to

         16  that, I have got to be honest with you, I was not

         17  involved, DDC was not one of my agencies, how they

         18  select in the long term, if you are talking about

         19  like November, December, I was not part of that, so

         20  I cannot speak to it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council member,

         22  it is like 5 minutes till twelve, and we have four

         23  other candidates to consider. We have the caucus,

         24  and I know you have, can you like sum it up please.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Sure, Mr.
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          2  Chairman.  Thank you very much for your patience.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I am trying.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I have some

          5  more concerns, but I am going to hold off for the

          6  moment, and allow the proceedings to go forward

          7  because I do not want to get in the way of my

          8  colleagues, who I am sure also have some concerns

          9  they want to raise.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I appreciate

         11  that.  Mr. Washington, we are going to be voting at

         12  the end, after we talk to and hear from all the

         13  other candidates, so, we appreciate your indulgence.

         14    We might have to, I am trying not to, I am trying

         15  to do this quickly so that we do not have to take a

         16  break and hold you up for another hour or so.  So,

         17  if we could just move forward quickly.

         18                 We now are going to hear from the

         19  candidates for the Environmental Control Board;

         20  Belle Horwitz and Robert Carver, and in deference to

         21  time, I will not repeat the rules and regulations of

         22  the Environmental Control Board.  So at this point,

         23  can you raise your hands to be sworn in?

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Do you

         25  solemnly swear or affirm the testimony you are about
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          2  to give the Committee is the truth, the whole truth?

          3                 MS. HORWITZ:  I do.

          4                 MR. CARVER:  I do.

          5                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Please

          6  state your names for the record.

          7                 MS. HORWITZ:  Belle Horwitz.

          8                 MR. CARVER:  Robert Carver.

          9                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Do you have an

         11  opening statement, Mr. Carver, well let's start

         12  ladies first, Ms. Horwitz?

         13                 MS. HORWITZ:  Just that I am very

         14  pleased to be here.  I am passionate about this

         15  City, and I believe my background and expertise can

         16  be of use in this position.  So, I look forward to

         17  serving on the ECB.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, I have

         19  looked over your resume, and it has extensive

         20  business experience, and I am glad that you are

         21  chosen to serve in that capacity.  I think it is on

         22  Jerry, she had to come a little closer to the mic.

         23                 Mr. Carver, do you have an opening

         24  statement?

         25                 MR. CARVER:  Yes, I am certainly
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          2  honored to have been nominated, and would look

          3  forward to serving the City once again.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  You are a

          5  reappointment, correct?

          6                 MR. CARVER:  No, actually.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, sorry.  I

          8  am just trying to rush here.  Forgive me.   Any

          9  questions for either Mr. Carver or Ms. Horwitz?

         10  Seeing none, then we will move to the Tax

         11  Commission. If you could raise your right hand, Ms.

         12  Alice Olick, and Aladar Gyimesi.

         13                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Do you

         14  solemnly swear or affirm the testimony you are about

         15  to give the Committee is the truth and the whole

         16  truth?

         17                 MR. GYIMESI:  I do.

         18                 MS. HORWITZ:  I do.

         19                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Please

         20  state your names for the record.

         21                 MR. GYIMESI:  Aladar Gyimesi.

         22                 MS. OLICK:  Alice Olick.

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, any

         25  opening statements?
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          2                 MR. GYIMESI:  Mr. Chairman, in the

          3  interest of moving the hearing along, I will just

          4  say that I felt truly privileged to serve as a Tax

          5  Commissioner, with the Tax Commission, and I am

          6  honored to be considered for reappointment.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.

          8                 MS. OLICK:  Also, Mr. Chairman, in

          9  the interest of brevity, I just want to say that I

         10  hope that my prior experience with the Law

         11  Department, in this field of real property taxation,

         12  will be useful to the Tax Commission.  I consider it

         13  a privilege to serve the City, and I look forward to

         14  doing it, and I thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  I

         16  would just hope that for the type, any questions for

         17  Tax Commission?  No?  Okay.  I would just hope that

         18  being on the Tax Commission, that you do have a

         19  self, do you have an opportunity to make sure that

         20  the, we protect the least among us in this City.  I

         21  know that we have needs we have to make sure that

         22  the City has an ability to pay for it's own

         23  expenses, but we also have to have a City that is

         24  willing to help those of us that are in trouble, and

         25  can barely afford to maintain their property value
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          2  because the value of a property that they might have

          3  paid $50,000 for 25 years ago, is maybe worth

          4  $250,000 to $300,000 now, and they are on a fixed

          5  income, so I would hope that you can always keep

          6  that in mind and that you can always try to do

          7  whatever you can as a Commissioner to help those

          8  people.  Because while their physical property might

          9  have increased in value, their ability to maintain

         10  their resources has diminished because their earning

         11  potential is now over.  So whatever you can do to

         12  always keep that in mind would be helpful, clearly,

         13  as this City is moving forward then, and needs to

         14  understand, and we probably need to revamp our tax

         15  base to some degree.  We should not do it on the

         16  backs of the least of us, so, that is my little riff

         17  for this morning.

         18                 And, with that, I think we have some

         19  housekeeping items to take are of.  Mr. Washington,

         20  we know that you sent a letter of your intent to

         21  resign, but my Committee Counsel has asked me that

         22  you actually send us the actual resignation letter

         23  so that we can get that.

         24                 Also, finally, regarding the Board of

         25  Health, this is not for any of the candidates, this
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          2  is just technical business between this Committee

          3  and the Mayor's Office.  We received a Board of

          4  Health opinion from the Conflict of Interest Board,

          5  we feel that this opinion is incomplete, and it

          6  emits any real discussion of Mr. Blaticks (phonetic)

          7  for profit business memberships.  We have waited

          8  over a year for this opinion, we would like the

          9  Mayor's Office to have the Conflicts of Interest

         10  Board expedite this outstanding item.

         11                 And while we are talking about

         12  outstanding items, we would like to chastise the

         13  Mayor's Office regarding the backlog of our

         14  appointments that have been submitted by the

         15  Council, and it has been terrible.  The

         16  reappointment of William Kuntz (phonetic) to the

         17  Civilian Complaint Review Board, the reappointment

         18  of Elias Aroot (phonetic) to the Taxi and Limousine

         19  Commission, and today, although he is ill, and he

         20  will not be with us, Dennis deLeon, his

         21  reappointment, which should have been a no-brainer,

         22  took the Mayor's Office too long to review and it

         23  has to, his term is already expired.  You know, we

         24  hope not to have to remention (sic) these items at

         25  our October hearing, and we would hope that they
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          2  people that we have already put in for submission,

          3  that their appointments could be done expeditiously.

          4                 At this time, we would like to move

          5  to a vote on all items.

          6                 Also, regarding the terms of advance

          7  notice for terms requested for appointments, we

          8  would like to get future advance notice Belle

          9  Horwitz, not anything to do with you madam, but the

         10  fact that the Mayor's Office did not give us advance

         11  notice regarding their desire for the complete term.

         12    We need to make sure that that is given to us in

         13  advance, so that we are clear on what our role

         14  should be and what the terms are.

         15                 And then, if I recall, there was

         16  something about last month where we had some people

         17  that were nominated where the Mayor's Office wanted

         18  us to appoint people for beyond our ability to

         19  appoint as a Council, we need to make sure that that

         20  is done, and that we will not have that kind of

         21  problem.  We cannot extend our appointment term

         22  beyond our, we cannot extend the term of appointment

         23  beyond our term as a Council, so we have to make

         24  sure that that is cleaned up.  So, we will talk

         25  about that with the Council and the Committee.
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          2                 At this time, we need to move forward

          3  to a vote because I see the caucus; we do not have a

          4  quorum?  We have one, two, three, seven, we have a

          5  quorum.  We have a voting quorum, and we will hold

          6  the vote open so that we can-- nine is a quorum?

          7  I hear the Speaker coming up the stairs, so.  Here

          8  we go, we have got a quorum.  Bill you can vote and

          9  then go, we are going to --

         10  Okay, all right, I would like to call the vote on

         11  all appointments that are here before us today.

         12  Okay, I will turn this over to the clerks office.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Comrie.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Aye on all.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Perkins.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Aye on all,

         17  with the exception of Mr. Washington, and in his

         18  case, I would like to vote in the negative.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Provenzano.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Aye on

         21  all.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Reyna.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Fidler.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Katz.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Mr. Chair, may

          6  I be excused to explain my vote?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I would have

          9  done this before, I apologize.  I was under the

         10  mistaken impression we were going right to Mr.

         11  Washington's vote.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  It is my fault.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I happen to

         14  work with Deputy Mayor Washington when I was at

         15  Borough President, Claire Shulman's Office, he was

         16  the Deputy Mayor for Community Assistance, I was the

         17  Chair of the Community Board's of Queens, and had

         18  the opportunity to work with him on several

         19  occasions.  I did find him to be extremely

         20  evenhanded in his behavior in, at least in Queens as

         21  far as I knew him, we shared a good relationship

         22  there as far as working for the community, and

         23  making sure the community has the needs that it had.

         24    I also see, which I did not know, he is a graduate

         25  of Forest Hills High School but that might be also
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          2  an added benefit.

          3                 Just for the record, I was a little

          4  disappointed on the MTA issue, and I think you and I

          5  have had those discussions, and I am convinced that

          6  at least you heard me out, and you knew of my

          7  opinions on that, and my disappointment in that

          8  vote.

          9                 But, in general, I think that he will

         10  be a good addition to the Appeals Board of CSC,

         11  which does need even handed work on that Board.  So,

         12  I am voting in the affirmative.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Weprin.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Aye on all.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The Speaker, Mr.

         16  Miller.

         17                 SPEAKER MILLER:  Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 9 in the

         19  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no abstentions,

         20  all items are adopted, with the exception of M- 676,

         21  which is adopted by of vote of 8 in the affirmative,

         22  1 in the negative, and no abstentions.

         23                 Council members, would you please

         24  sign the Committee Reports?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Can everyone
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          2  sign the Committee Reports?

          3                 We will hold the vote open for those

          4  members that are downstairs, that are on their way

          5  up.

          6                 Congratulations to all the

          7  candidates.

          8                 And, also wanted to remind the

          9  members that Dennis deLeon was not here so we did

         10  not vote on him today.  We will be bringing him up

         11  on the next Stated Meeting.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Oddo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Aye.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Don't forget to

         15  turn your books in, and to sign the documents.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 12:05 p.m.)
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         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 17th day of September 2003.
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          EMILY GRAVES
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          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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         22                 -----------------------

                              EMILY GRAVES
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